
HEARING TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

 
 
 

 
City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Licensing Urgency Sub-Committee 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Thursday 25th April, 2024 

   

Time: 
 

 10.00 am 

   

Venue: 
 

 Rooms 18.01 - 18.03 - 18th Floor, 64 Victoria Street, London, 
SW1E 6QP 

   

Members: 
 

 Councillors: 
 

 

  Aziz Toki (Chair) 
Karen Scarborough 
 

Maggie Carman 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting 
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda 
 
Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the 
ground floor reception at City Hall from 10am.  If you have a 
disability and require any special assistance please contact 
the Committee Officer (details listed below) in advance of the 
meeting. 
 

   

T  

 An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone 
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  If you require 
any further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Sarah Craddock. 
 
scraddock@westminster.gov.uk 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Head of Legal & Democratic Services in advance of the meeting please. 
 
AGENDA 
PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  
 
1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To report any changes to the membership. 
 

 
 
2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the 
existence and nature of any pecuniary interests or any other 
significant interest in matters on this agenda. 
 

 

 
3.   PAVEMENT LICENCES (Pages 7 - 12) 
 
 
Stuart Love 
Chief Executive 
18 April 2024 
 



 
 

 

3

In considering applications for premises licences under the Licensing Act 2003, the sub-
committee is advised of the following: 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The City of Westminster statement of licensing policy applies to all applications where 
relevant representations have been made. The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to 
have regard to the City of Westminster statement of Licensing Policy and the guidance 
issued by the Secretary of state under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
GUIDANCE CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The Licensing Authority is required to have regard to any guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
PERMITTED TEMPORARY ACTIVITIES 

 
The licensee of any premises is entitled under the Licensing Act 2003 to apply for 
permission to hold temporary events, authorising licensable activities instead of or in 
addition to any activities that may be authorised by a premises licence, subject to the 
following restrictions: 

 
1) No more than 12 events over a total of 21 days may be held at any one premises in any 

year 
 

2) Each event must last for no more than 168 hours 
 

3) There must be 24 hours between each event 
 

4) The number of people at each event must be less than 500.  
 

A Temporary Event Notice for each event (a TEN) is required to be given to the licensing 
authority, the police and environmental health service no later than 10 working days 
before the event for a ‘standard’ TEN or 5 to 9 working days before the event is due to 
begin for a ‘late’ TEN. The licensing authority is required to send an acknowledgement by 
the next working day. 
 
Once a Temporary Event Notice is given  the police and environmental health service 
have a right to object to the event if they are satisfied  that the event will undermine any of 
the licensing objectives of preventing crime and disorder, prevention of public nuisance, 
protection of children from harm and promotion of public safety.  They must serve an 
objection notice stating their reasons as to why the objectives would be undermined to the 
licensing authority and the premises user within 3 working days of receiving a copy of the 
TEN. The licensing authority is required to hold a hearing and may issue a counter notice 
which will prevent the event taking place. 
 



 
 

 

4

LIVE MUSIC ACT 2012 
 
The Live Music Act amends the Licensing Act 2003 by: 
 

• removing the licensing requirement for amplified live music taking place between 
8am and 11pm before audiences of no more than 200 persons on premises 
authorised by a premises licence or club premises certificate to supply alcohol for 
consumption on the premises (at a time when those premises are open for the 
purposes of being used for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises), 
subject to the right of a licensing authority to impose conditions about live music 
following a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate 
  

• removing the licensing requirement for amplified live music taking place between 
8am and 11pm before audiences of no more than 200 persons in workplaces not 
otherwise licensed under the 2003 Act (or licensed only for the provision of late 
night refreshment)  

 
• removing the licensing requirement for unamplified live music taking place between 

8am and 11pm in any place, subject to the right of a licensing authority to impose 
conditions about live music following a review of a premises licence or club 
premises certificate relating to premises authorised to supply alcohol for 
consumption on the premises 

  
• removing the licensing requirement for the provision of entertainment facilities 

  
• widens the licensing exemption for live music that is integral to a performance of 

Morris dancing or dancing of a similar type, so that the exemption applies to both 
live or recorded music instead of just unamplified live music in that instance. 

 



 
 

 

5

CORE HOURS WHEN CUSTOMERS ARE PERMITTED TO BE ON THE PREMISES  
(As set out in the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy)  
 
•   For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises: 

 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to midnight 
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30 
Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30. 

 
• For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises: 

 
Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00 
Sundays: 10:00 to 22:30. 

 
•   For premises for the provision of other licensable activities: 
 

Friday and Saturday: 09.00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09.00 to midnight 
Other Sundays: 09.00 to 22.30 
Monday to Thursday: 09.00 to 23.30. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing (Urgency) Committee Report 
 
 
 

 

Licensing (Urgency) Committee 
Report  

 
Decision Maker: Licensing (Urgency) Committee  

Date: 25 April 2024 

Title: Pavement Licences 

Wards Affected: All 

Report of:  Mark Wiltshire - Director of Public Protection & 
Licensing 

 
1. Executive Summary 

 
1.1 This has become an urgent decision because the legislation, unexpectedly 

commenced on 31 March and the Licensing Service is receiving applications and 
therefore a decision is required urgently as applications must be determined 
within 28 days or they are automatically granted for 2 years. 
 

1.2 The Levelling Up & Regeneration Act 2023 became law last year, the provisions 
to make the pavement licence scheme permanent were not immediately 
commenced.  It was anticipated that it would happen later in this year. 

 
1.3 The council has historically issued Tables & Chairs licences under the City of 

Westminster Act, typically there was approximately 900 licences. 
 

1.4: In response to Covid, temporary legislation was introduced as part of a package 
of economic driven reforms.  The Business and Planning Act 2020 created the 
pavement licensing regime, along with other legislative measures.  The City of 
Westminster Act ran in parallel with the pavement licensing process, and the City 
Council has been issuing pavement licences to businesses to facilitate outdoor 
dining under these powers. 
 

1.5: The temporary legislation and was due to expire at the end of September 2024, 
however, the government has made the scheme permanent, with some 
amendments, through the Levelling Up & Regeneration Act which received royal 
assent last year and came into force on Sunday 31 March 2024.  This means 
applicants who are seeking permission for tables and chairs (and other furniture) 
in connection with the consumption of food and drink, are required to apply under 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



Licensing (Urgency) Committee Report 
 

the Business and Planning Act 2020 for a pavement licence rather than applying 
under the City of Westminster Act. 

 
 
2. Recommendations 
2.1 A decision is required on what fee should be set. 

 
At present, the fee is based on the maximum permitted fee setting allowed. 

 
2.2 Recommendation:  To set the fee at the statutory maximum, that is £500 for 

new applications and £350 for renewal applications. 
 
2.3: Its further recommended that as licences granted under the City of Westminster 

Act will automatically lapse and not be renewable at their expiration, any 
premises holding such a licence shall be treated as a renewal under the new 
regime (as long as such an application is made before the expiration of the 
existing licence) and the scope of the application is exactly the same as the 
application under the granted licence. 

 
 
3. Reasons for Decision 
 
3.1 The Levelling Up & Regeneration Act became law last year, the provisions to 

make the pavement licence scheme permanent were not immediately 
commenced.  It was anticipated that it would happen later in the year but it 
unexpectedly commenced on 31 March and the Licensing Service is already 
receiving applications and therefore a decision is required urgently as 
applications must be determined within the 28 days or they are automatically 
granted for 2 years. 

 
3.2 The fees for a new licence and a renewal of an existing licence are set by the Act 

to a maximum of £500 for a new application and £350 for a renewal of a licence 
respectively. The council does have discretion on what to charge, up to the 
maximum, but it is a recommendation that the fee should be set to the maximum 
for the reasons specified below. 

 
3.3 The Business and Planning Act 2020 initially set the fee up to a maximum of 

£100.  This was a significant reduction from the fees for tables & chairs licence 
under the City of Westminster Act and did not cover the Council’s costs of 
processing, inspecting, monitoring and enforcing the pavement licensing regime. 

 
3.4 Processing a pavement licence application takes on average 3 to 4 hours for a 

renewal application and 5 to 6 hours for a new application.  For renewal 
applications, this time includes the time to validate the application, ensuring that 
all the relevant paperwork has been provided with the application and the correct 
fee has been paid.  Time is also spent undertaking the consultation process and 
once the consultation period has ended, assessing any comments and/or 

Page 8



Licensing (Urgency) Committee Report 
 

objections made by Environmental Health, Highways Planning and local 
residents and other persons who have made any representations, determining 
the application and granting or refusing the application. 

 
3.5 For new applications, or where there is a significant change from a previous 

licence, this will be similar to the above but will also include additional time to 
ensure the suitability of the proposed location, the number of tables and chairs 
proposed etc, and assessing the merits of the application. 

 
3.6 The fully on costed, hourly rate of a licensing Officer is approx. £100, therefore 

setting the Renewal fee at £350 and the fee for new grants at £500 would allow 
the council to recover the cost for processing these applications however, it will 
still not allow the recovery of the cost of inspecting, monitoring and enforcing the 
pavement licensing regime. 

 
 
4. Background, including Policy Context 
 
4.1 The council has historically issued Tables & Chairs licences under the City of 

Westminster Act, typically there was approximately 900 licences. 
 

4.2: In response to Covid, temporary legislation was introduced as part of a package 
of economic driven reforms.  The Business and Planning Act 2020 included 
provision for pavement licences.  The City of Westminster Act ran in parallel for 
existing pavement licences, and the City Council has been issuing pavement 
licences to businesses to facilitate outdoor dining under these powers. 
 

4.3: The temporary legislation was due to expire at the end of September 2024, 
however, the government has made the scheme permanent, with some 
amendments, through the Levelling Up & Regeneration Act which received royal 
assent last year and came into force on Sunday 31 March 2024. 
 

4.4: The original legislation required applications to be determined within a 14-day 
window from receipt of the valid application and the licence must be issued for a 
minimum of 3 months from the start date.  The application cost was set at the 
maximum of £100.  This was a significant reduction from the fees for tables & 
chairs licence under the City of Westminster Act and did not cover the Council’s 
costs of processing, inspecting, monitoring and enforcing the pavement licensing 
regime. 
 

4.5: If a licence is not determined within the given timescales the licence was deemed 
granted.  In the original legislation this time frame was 14 days.  Under the 
permanent legislation this has been extended to 28 days. 
 

4.6: Since the introduction of the pavement licence scheme in 2020, these licences 
have only been issued for a 6-month period. 
 

Page 9



Licensing (Urgency) Committee Report 
 

 
5. Impact of the Levelling Up and Regeneration Act on the Business and 

Planning Act 
 
5.1 The Levelling Up & Regeneration Act makes the provisions for pavement 

licensing regime permanent. 
 
5.2 The Act also makes several amendments to the original scheme including: 

 
• Amending the fees councils can charge applicants, increasing it from £100 

up to £350 for premises which already hold a pavement licence, and up to 
£500 for new applicants. 

 
• Extends the public consultation period and council determination period 

from 7 days to 14 days. 
 
• Extends the maximum duration of pavement licences from 1 year to 2 

years. The length of a licence is still at the discretion of the local authority. 
 
• Provides that pavement licences can also be amended by the local 

authority with the consent of the licence holder if it is considered that the 
conditions on the licence are not being met. 

 
• Prohibits a local authority from granting a tables and chairs licence under 

the old regimes, if a pavement licence is capable of being granted under 
the Act. 

 
• Inserts a new enforcement schedule providing powers to the local 

authority to remove furniture if a premises is not abiding by its pavement 
licence conditions and hours. 

 
5.2 One of the benefits of the pavement licence procedure is that once a pavement 

licence is granted by the local authority, the premises will benefit from deemed 
planning permission for the furniture for the duration of the pavement licence. 
This will not change. 

 
 
6 Financial Implications 
 
6.1 In 2023/24 the Council determined 1705 pavement licence applications.  In 

addition to that the team processed 352 tables and chairs licences under the City 
of Westminster Act and recovered £1,096,025 in revenue income from these 
processes.  It is important to recognise that this is not profit, as this income is 
used to provide both the administrative process. 

 
6.2 Now that the provisions of the Levelling Up and Regeneration Act make the 

pavement licence scheme permanent it also has the effect of prohibiting the 

Page 10



Licensing (Urgency) Committee Report 
 

council from issuing tables and chairs under any other legislation.  Therefore, it is 
no longer possible to issue licences under the City of Westminster Act. 
 

6.3 The fees for a new licence and a renewal of an existing licence are set by the Act 
to a maximum of £500 for a new application and £350 for a renewal of a licence 
respectively. The council does have discretion on what to charge, up to the 
maximum, but it is a recommendation that the fee should be set to the maximum. 
 

6.4 Assuming the number of pavement licences remain consistent, and the licence 
fee is set at the maximum, the future income forecast for the next financial year 
would be £770,00 for renewals plus however many new applications are 
received.  In addition to that, there are currently over 200 old tables and chairs 
licences under the City of Westminster Act. If they wish to renew, they will be 
required to apply for a pavement licence. This could be a further £140,000 
annually.  
 

6.5 With both fees set at the maximum level and renewals continuing to be required 
every 6 months, this will be within the current budgeted income target along with 
offsetting the costs of the administrative process, inspection and enforcement.  

 
 
7. Legal Implications 
 
7.1 In addition to the legal implications are contained within the body of this report. 
 
7.2 When determining pavement licence applications, the Council must have regard 

 to the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State. 
 
7.3 Paragraph 2.1 of the Guidance states that to help support local businesses and 

give them more certainty, the expectation is that local authorities are pragmatic 
and will grant licences for the maximum period of 2 years, unless there are good 
reasons for granting a licence for a shorter period such as plans for future 
changes in use of road space. 

 
7.4 The Council will need to consider a number of factors, when determining whether 

to approve a pavement application. These include whether local conditions might 
be needed to make it possible to approve an application which would otherwise 
be unacceptable. 

 
7.5. When setting local conditions and determining applications, the Council will also 

want to consider the following factors: 
 

- public health and safety including security – for example, any reasonable 
crowd management measures needed as a result of a licence being 
granted; 

 

Page 11



Licensing (Urgency) Committee Report 
 

- public amenity – will the proposed use create nuisance to neighbouring 
occupiers by generating anti-social behaviour, and litter; 

 
- accessibility – taking a proportionate approach to considering the nature of 

the site in relation to which the application for a licence is made, its 
surroundings, and its users, taking account of: 

 
- considerations under the no-obstruction condition including the cumulative 

impact of multiple pavement licences in close proximity, in particular 
considering the needs of disabled people and any other temporary 
measures in place that may be relevant to the proposal, for example, the 
reallocation of road space. This could include pedestrianised streets and 
any subsequent reallocation of this space to vehicles; 

 
- whether there are other permanent street furniture or fixed structures in 

place on the footway that already reduce access; and 
 
- other users of the space, for example if there are high levels of pedestrian 

or cycle movements. 
 
7.6 There is no statutory right of appeal in relation to the Council’s decision in relation 

to a pavement licence application. 
 
 
8. Equality Implications 
 
8.1 S.149 of the Equality Act 2010 places a duty on local authorities to have due 

regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, to advance equality of 
opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and to 
encourage good relations between those who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not.  The Council has had due regard to this duty when setting 
the fees and specifying the conditions which should be attached to the pavement 
licence. 

 
8.2 When determining applications, the licensing authority will give due regard to the 

public and highway safety of other highway users in line with all the criteria it will 
take into account in determining whether or not an application should or should 
not be granted.  The statutory conditions also take account of the needs of 
persons with mobility and visual impairments. 

Page 12


	Agenda
	3 Pavement Licences

